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June 26, 2020 

Ms. Toni Edwards 
Senior Scientist 
South Florida Water Management District 
3301 Gun Club Road 
West Palm Beach, Florida  
tedwards@sfwmd.gov 

    

  
 Re: EAA A-2 Reservoir Water Reservation Draft Technical Document 
 
  Dear Ms. Edwards: 
 

I am writing on behalf of Florida Crystals Corporation and its affiliates (including 
Okeelanta Corporation and New Hope Sugar Company) to provide comments on the South 
Florida Water Management District’s (“SFWMD”) draft “Technical Document to Support the 
Central Everglades Planning Project Everglades Agricultural Area A-2 Reservoir Water 
Reservation” dated May 2020 (the “Draft Technical Document”).   

 
The SFWMD is proposing to reserve water from the EAA A-2 Reservoir so that it can 

only be used for environmental purposes.  The Draft Technical Document summarizes this 
proposal as follows:  “[a]ll surface water released from the EAA A-2 Reservoir through the S-
624, S-625 and S-626 structures and directed to the Lower East Coast Everglades waterbodies 
will be reserved for the protection of fish and wildlife in the Central Everglades through adoption 
of a prospective Water Reservation rule.”  Draft Technical Document, at ES-1.  The SFWMD 
proposes to reserve this water pursuant to Section 373.223(4), Florida Statutes. 

 
Florida Crystals supports the Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan, of which the 

EAA A-2 Reservoir is one component.  The Comprehensive Plan is the framework for all 
modifications and operational changes to the Central and Southern Florida Project that are 
intended to achieve environmental benefits.  The plan is designed to increase the amount of 
water provided by the project, by saving water that otherwise would be discharged to tide, so 
that it can be used beneficially.  By addressing environmental needs with this “new water” (80% 
was identified for the environment and 20% for other project users), the Comprehensive Plan is 
able to protect existing legal users who rely on water already provided by the project.  To 
provide assurances that most of the “new water” will be devoted to environmental purposes, the 
plan allows for water reservations such as that proposed by SFWMD for the EAA A-2 Reservoir.       

 
The Draft Technical Document does not provide information needed to support a water 

reservation for the EAA A-2 Reservoir.  First, the Draft Technical Document does not identify 
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any specific amount of water that would be reserved for environmental use.  The proposed 
reservation would reserve water discharged from the reservoir through certain water control 
structures, but would not reserve any specific quantity of water.  The amount discharged 
through different structures will depend on how the reservoir is operated.  To our knowledge, no 
operational plan has been developed or approved.  Without such an operational plan, it is 
unknown exactly what water the SFWMD is proposing to reserve. 

 
Both Florida and federal law require reservation of a specific quantity of water.  Section 

373.223(4), Florida Statutes, provides that “[t]he governing board … may reserve from use by 
permit applicants, water in such location and quantities, and for such seasons of the year, as in 
its judgment may be required for the protection of fish and wildlife or the public health and 
safety.”   The Water Resources Development Act of 2000 (“WRDA 2000”) similarly requires the 
SFWMD and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (“Corps”) to “identify the amount of water to be 
reserved or allocated for the natural system” in connection with projects under the 
Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan.  WRDA 2000, § 601(h)(4)(a)(iii)(V).  The Draft 
Technical Document does not identify any “amount” or “quantity” of water that would be 
reserved from consumptive use.  The Draft Technical Document needs to be revised to include 
this information which is required for a water reservation.     

 
Second, the Draft Technical Document does not identify whether the water being 

reserved is “new water” made available as a result of the A-2 Reservoir project, or whether the 
reservation would include water that currently is relied upon by existing legal users.  The 
Savings Clause in WRDA 2000, § 601(h)(5)(A), provides that the SFWMD and Corps may not 
eliminate an existing legal source of water supply until a sufficient replacement source is 
available.  Since the proposed reservation rule would make unavailable for consumptive use 
certain water discharged from the A-2 Reservoir, the SFWMD must make certain that it will not 
be reserving water that is currently being used.  The Draft Technical Document indicates that at 
least some of the water in the A-2 Reservoir will come from EAA runoff, and that the remainder 
will come from Lake Okeechobee.  Existing legal water users like Florida Crystals rely on water 
from both sources.  The Draft Technical Document does not show that the water reservation 
would reserve only “new water,” and we recommend that it be revised to address this issue.     
 

Thank you for considering our comments.  Florida Crystals looks forward to continuing to 
work with the SFWMD and Corps on this important project.  For your convenience, we also 
attached a copy of our comments to the Corps on its permit for the EAA A-2 Reservoir 
Stormwater Treatment Area, in hopes that it will provide further input as how this project can be 
best implemented consistent with the Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan. 

 

 Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Neal McAliley 

 
 
cc:   Matthew Coglianese 
Attachment 
















